
APPROVED 6/9/22 

  

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                           Page 1 of 3 

May 26, 2022 

  

MINUTES 

TOWN OF TOPSHAM PLANNING BOARD MEETING 

IN PERSON IN THE DONALD A. RUSSELL MEETING ROOM 

AND ON LINE VIA ZOOM – MAY 26, 2022,  6:30 P.M. 

______________________________________________________ 

 

  

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Don Spann 

Kerri Bickford 

Ronald Bisson 

        Larry Brann 

        Dan Flaig  

 

MEMBERS ABSENT:   

  

Scott Libby and Joshua Spooner 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Rod Melanson, Director of Planning and Development; Kate Burch, 

Assistant Town Planner.  

 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL  
 

 Chairman Spann called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. The Recording Secretary took the roll 

call and noted that everyone on the Board was present in person, except for Kerri Bickford 

who attended via Zoom.  Scott Libby and Joshua Spooner had been excused.  

 

Note of Appreciation to the Town Planner 

On behalf of the Board, Chairman Spann offered special thanks to Town Planner Rod Melanson 

for 18 years of dedicated service to the Town and wished him well in his new endeavors.  

 

B. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE APRIL 14, 2022 MEETING 
 

 Motion was made by Mr. Brann, seconded by Mr. Bisson, and it was  

  VOTED 

   To approve the minutes of the April 14, 2022 meeting as written. 

   (The vote was 4 in favor with one abstention: Ms. Bickford.) 
   

C. PUBLIC HEARING 

 

CLOUTIER PROPERTIES, LLC HAS SUBMITTED PROPOSED SITE PLAN AND 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS FOR 7,500 S.F. OFFICE BUILDING, 6,000 S.F. SALT 

SHED, PAVING AND GRAVEL AREA MAINTENANCE AND LANDSCAPING AT 

601 LEWISTON ROAD, TAX MAP R02, LOT 048 

 

Chairman Spann read aloud Agenda Item C and asked who was present to represent the 

applicant.  Melissa Archbell from Sitelines responded that she represented Mr. Cloutier and 

that Jim Howard from the Priority Group was also present to speak for the applicant. 

 



APPROVED 6/9/22 

  

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                           Page 2 of 3 

May 26, 2022 

Ms. Archbell reviewed the proposed project in a Power Point presentation.  She said the use is 

in the Rural Commercial Zone and is in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan.  It was noted 

this is before the Board for Site Plan and Conditional Use approvals.  It will be located at 601 

Lewiston Road which has been used as a staging and gravel parking lot and contains 

approximately 2.3 acres.  The building will be a single story office and a maintenance building 

(approximately 7,500 s.f.), a salt shed, paving and gravel maintenance, storage of bulk 

landscaping materials and a small shed for retail sales. The site has previously been developed 

and the proposed development will result in an overall reduction in impervious area.  

 

The drawings show parking in the front with the salt shed in the rear.  A bike rack will be in 

the front parking lot. A new septic system will be installed.  A sign, in accordance with 

ordinance requirements, will be erected.  The footprint of the building was reviewed via Power 

Point.  Applicant is currently pursuing the entrance permit from the State. There is ample sight 

distance from both east and west direction, so it is assumed there will be no problem obtaining 

the entrance permit. No waivers will need to be requested.  The project will entail 15 storage 

bins for materials which will be constructed of concrete.  The bins will be adequately screened 

with fencing or vegetation to minimize the visual impact on neighboring properties. Ms. 

Archbell said the building will be low maintenance.  Retail plantings will be shown in the front.    

 

Following Ms. Archbell’s presentation, the meeting was opened to discussion between the 

Board.  Assistant Planner Burch noted that all staff comments had been met. Board member 

Flaig asked what type of retail sales are planned.  Mr. Howard responded that will not be like 

a greenhouse but will mostly sell some plantings, bark mulch and stone. Board member Brann 

expressed concern regarding the sale of salt from the salt shed.  He asked if the salt will only 

be used by the business or will it be sold to the public.  Mr. Howard responded that the salt 

will be used by the applicant but will also be for sale to the general public.  Mr. Brann then 

asked how far from Route 196 will be salt shed be located. He expressed concern that large 

trucks coming to get salt just before or during a storm may be backed up on the road waiting 

to be filled with salt. Mr. Howard responded that the salt shed will be located behind the 

building near the back of the property and will probably be accessed only 4 months out of the 

year.  Mr. Brann questioned if enough room is proposed for large trucks to turn around to be 

filled at the shed.  Ms. Archbell brought up the site plan on the screen and showed where the 

shed is anticipated to be located on the property which allows ample room for large trucks to 

be filled and for ample turnaround.  
 

Following all questions posed from Board members, the Public Hearing was declared open.  

Only one individual asked to be recognized: 
 

Dana Houston, 600 Lewiston Road – Mr. Houston said he lives directly across from the site 

of the proposed business.  He asked what the difference was between an RC Zone and a C 

Zone.  Planner Rod Melanson explained that there is not much difference except for uses 

allowed.  Mr. Houston said he was not against the project but had concerns.  He asked if the 

site plan showed this evening was different than that reviewed a month ago.  Mr. Howard said 

it was different; that the building has been moved further away from Route 196. Mr. Houston 

then asked if anyone could come to the site for a load of salt during the night, like at 3:00 a.m. 

Mr. Howard responded “yes.”  Mr. Houston said he did not have a problem with the 

landscaping business but does have a problem with the salt shed.  He said he is concerned that 



APPROVED 6/9/22 

  

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                           Page 3 of 3 

May 26, 2022 

we will hear beepers from trucks backing up to the shed and also the engine noise from large 

trucks turning into the site all hours of the night. It was noted that the trucks can be outfitted 

with blinking lights if they need to back up and not beepers.  Mr. Howard said trucks will not 

have to back up.  They will simply drive to the salt shed and be filled and then leave.  He said 

there will be no loaders to load the salt.  Mr. Houston asked what kind of lighting will be used.  

Mr. Howard said the applicant will adhere to the Lighting Ordinance and meet all standards.  

Currently there are 10 lighting poles planned for the site and 4 lights on the building and on 

the salt shed.  

 

With no further comments to be heard, the Public Hearing was declared closed and the Board 

entered into discussion.  Mr. Flaig asked how the salt will be dispensed into the trucks.  Mr. 

Howard said he was not sure, but thinks there will be a system where the trucks simply drive 

under a system which will drop the salt into the trucks and they drive away.  The Board asked 

for assurance for certain how the system will operate. Mr. Howard agreed to bring this 

information back to the Board.  

 

Question was asked if deliveries of salt would be just during working hours of 7:00 a.m. to 

4:00 p.m.  Mr. Howard responded “yes”.   The Board said they would like more information 

on the salt shed.  Ms. Archbell brought up a picture on the screen showing a 25-foot tall 

structure with a dome, which sits on a cement with concrete walls.  Mr.  Brann asked what is 

the area around the shed like.  Ms. Archbell said it will be surrounded either by reclaim or 

gravel.  Mr. Spann asked if there would be signage pointing which way to the salt shed for the 

general public to know where to go.  Board member Bisson said that the firm he works for, 

Crookers, only allows salt to be picked up during regular working hours which are 7:00 a.m. 

to 4:00 p.m.  Mr. Brann said he has no problem with the application except for needing more 

information on the salt shed.  He would like to see the number of anticipated traffic into and 

out of the site. Board member Bickford said she feels the general public will watch the weather 

on the news and probably pick up the salt they need in advance of the actual storm. Mr. Howard 

said there is a great need for a salt shed in the area and people have to be able to pick up the 

salt when they need it.   

 

Mr. Brann suggested tabling the application until more certain information can come before 

the Board on the salt shed, specific traffic to the shed and also possible noise involved. Mr. 

Howard asked if the Board would be willing to take a five minute break so he could call the 

applicant and obtain the answers the Board is asking for or if they could come back to a meeting 

in two weeks.  

 

Motion was made by Mr. Brann, seconded by Mr. Flaig and it was  
 

VOTED 

 To table further consideration of the application until the June 9, 2022 meeting. 
 (The vote was 3 in favor with 2 opposed (Bisson and Bickford).  
 

ADJOURN 

 The meeting was adjourned at 7:40 p.m. 

               Respectfully submitted,  

      _____________________________ 

      Patty Williams, Recording Secretary    


